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To the Members of Digital Age Retail Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Digital Age Retail Private Limited ('the
Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its loss (including other comprehensive
income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

2 \We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

3. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does
not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2023

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directars.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do sc.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the

Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control,
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2023

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

10. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 were audited by the
predecessor auditor, BSR & Co. LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements vide their audit report dated 12 August 2022.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11. Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 187 read with Schedule V to the Act are
not applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section
2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure B a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

13. Further to our comments in Annexure B, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those bocks;
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended

31 March 2023

g)

The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account ;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in Annexure A wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us

i.  The Company, as detailed in note 31 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2023;

i.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

¢. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited

Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2023

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which
use accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting
software which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on
1 April 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Ldwal”

Shashi Tadwalkar

Partner .
Membership No.: 101797 =
UDIN: 23101797BGXFEH5736

Place: Pune
Date: 04 September 2023
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2023

Annexure A

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Digital Age Retail Private Limited (‘the
Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl') prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2023

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unautharised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit

of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

M&‘”“}}/p

Shashi Tadwalkar
Partner
Membership No.: 101797

UDIN: 23101797BGXFEHS5736

Place: Pune
Date: 04 September 2023
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2023

Annexure B referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Digital Age Retail Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

() (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(b)

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of physical verification programme adopted by the Company, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (including investment properties)

(d)

(other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets
during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any

benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

(ili)

(iv)

(b)

during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for
each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186
of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

%

Page 8 of 11

Chartered Accountants Walker Chandiok & Go LLF is reglstarad

with limited liability with identification

Dffices in Bengalury, Chandigarh, Channal, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kochl, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Dsihi, Noida and Pune numoer AAC-2085 and has |ts registerad

office at L-41, Connaught Circus, Outar
Circle; Mew Delhl, 110001, India



Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2023

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/ services / business activities.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services
tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, nc undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b

—

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
autharities on account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the

Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
loans or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the period covered by our audit,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the
Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our

audit.
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2023

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
efc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited

Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2023

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the
Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based an the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has met the criteria as
specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Palicy) Rules, 2014, however, in the absence of average net prafits in the
immediately three preceding years, there is no requirement for the Company to spend any
amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)
-of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Shashi Tadwalkar

Partner

Membership No.: 101797
UDIN: 23101797BGXFEH5736

Place: Pune
Date: 04 September 2023
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. | AsatMarch 31, 2023 | Asat March 31, 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 243.62 48.09
Right of use asset 6 2,265.95 459.04
Other intangibie Assets 5 144 -
Financial assets
(a) Other financial assets 7 219.76 58.05
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 62.37 -
Income tax assets (net) 9 25.99 21.10
Other non-current assets 10 1,809.73 1,112.01
Total non-current assets 4,628.86 1,698.29
Current assets
Inventories 11 4,488.33 327.47
Financial assets
(a) Trade receivables L 152.82 128.27
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 13(a) 681.38 266,03
(c) Bank balances other than (b) above 13 (b} 201.89 257
(d) Other financial assets 14 42.95 6.73
Other current assets 15 818.98 271.86
Total current assets 6,386.35 1,002.93
Total Assets 11,015.21 2,701.22
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 16 10.50 0.10
Other equity p g 1,726.96 (325.53)
Total equity 1,737.46 (325.43)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
{a) Lease liabilities 6 2,155.93 437.66
Provisions 18 (a) 18.16 13.50
Total non-current liabilities 2,174.09 451.16
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(a) Lease liabilities 6 185.45 49,85
(b) Trade payables
Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 19 22.249 1.85
Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 19 6,195,93 1,860.33
(c) Other financial liabilities 20 12.72 6.60
Other current liabilities 21 68298 653.60
Provisions 18 (b) 4.34 3.25
Total current liabilities 7,103.66 2,575.48
Total equity and liabilities 11,015.21 2,701.22
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
See accompanying notes forming integral part of the these financial statements 3-41
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For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

» For the year ended For the year ended
e ot N Marchv31, 2023 Marchval, 2022
income
Revenue from operations 22 30,099.81 24,099.73
Other income 23 120.03 95.07
Total Income 30,219.84 24,194.80
Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 29,400.23 20,526.40
Changes in inventories of Stock-in-Trade 24 (4,160.86) (64.86)
Employee benefits expense
(i) Employee benefits expense 25 (a) 424.23 289.00
(ii) Employee share based payment expense 25(b) 133.59 -
Finance cost 26 133.45 47.53
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 231,57 108.10
Other expenses 28 4,187.71 3,345.57
Total expenses 30,349.92 24,251.74
(Loss) / Profit before tax (130.08) (56.93)
Tax expense 29
Current tax (5.32) -
Income tax relating to earlier years (12.15) -
Deferred tax 64.45 2.87
Total tax expense 46.98 2.87
(Loss) / Profit for the year (83.10) (54.07)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations 8.22 11.40
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit
or loss (2.07) (2.87)
Total other comprehensive income 6.15 8.53
Total comprehensive (Loss) / Profit for the year (76.95) (45.54)
Earning per equity share
Basis earning per share (INR) 30 (79.40) (53.53)
Diluted earning per share (INR) 30 (79.40) (53.53)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes forming integral part of the these financial statements 3-41
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Digital Age Retall Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (130.08) (56.93)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 4579 35.49
Amortisation of right of use assets 185.35 72,61
Amortisation of intangible assets 043 3
Employee share based payment expense 133.59 -
Liabilities written back (9.22) (18.13)
Rent concession 5.28)
Interest income on fixed deposits with banks (26.05) (22.60)
Interest income on security deposits (6.01) (2.75)
Finance costs 133.45 47.53
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 327.25 49.94
Working capital changes
Change in trade receivables (24.55) 179,04
Change in inventories (4,160.86) |64.86)
Change in other non-current financial assets (179.35) (18.57)
Change in other non-current assets (697.72) 1349.71)
Change in other current assets (547.12) {162.66)
Change in trade payables 4,355.99 167.32
Change in other current liabilities 2939 151.26
Change in provisions 1398 717
Change in current and non-current financial liabilities 15.34 {4723}
Cash (used) in operating activities (867.65) (89.30)
% paid [net of refl receiv [22.36 (4.78)
Net cash [used) in operatin iviti {A) (890.01) {94.08)
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment {242 .34) (36.85)
Investments in Bank deposits (4,499 91) (3,233.36)
Proceeds from Bank deposits 4,200.12 3,233.30
Interest received 15.59 23.07
t cash (used) in investin iviti [B) (522.54) [13.84)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares 0.40
Proceeds from Securities Premium 2,005.85 -
R f iabilities (including Inter (178.34) (80,79}
N enerated/{used) in fi ng activiti {C) 1,827.91 [80.79)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 415.35 (188.70)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 266.03 454.73
h and cash eguiv h r 681.3
Notes:
Particuliss For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021

1. Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand 0.21 0.18 0.18
Balances with banks
In current accounts 208.27 265.85 255.55
In deposit accounts having original maturity less than 3 months 472.90 - 199.00
Total 6581.38 266.03 454,73




Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts in Rupees millions, uniess otherwise stated)

Movement in financial liabilities

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Opening balance of lease liabilities 487,51 456.96
Movement

Cash flows (178.34) (80.79)
|MNon cash changes 2,032.21 111.34
Closing balance of lease liabilities 2,341.38 487.51

Non-cash movement represents:

- With respect to leases, accrual of interest on lease liabilities, rent concessions, new additions and deletions to the leases.

Summary of significant accounting policies

See accompanying notes forming integral part of the these financial

statements
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts In Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

A Eqguity share capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 |As at March 31, 2022
Balance as at beginning of the year 0.10 0.10
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Changes in equity share capital during the year 10.40 -
Balance as at end of the year 10.50 0.10
Other equity
Attributable to the owners of the Company
Reserves & Surplus Total
Particulars Equity contribution Remeasurement of Torsl
attributable to
Retained earnings from Holding the net defined
owners of the
Company benefit Plans
Company
Balance as at 1 April 2021 (283.85) 3.86 (279.99)
Loss for the year {54.07) - - (54.07)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - - 8.53 8.53
Total comprehensive Income for the year (54.07) - 8.53 (45.54)
Share-based payment Expense - - - -
Premium on Issue of shares - - - -
Capitalisation on account of issue of bonus shares - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 (337.91) - 12,39 (325.53)
Attributable to the owners of the Company
Reserves & Surplus Total
Partlculars Equity contribution Remeasurement of Total
|attributable to
Retained earnings from Holding the net defined
owners of the
Company benefit Plans
Company
Balance as at 1 April 2022 (337.91) - 12,39 {325.53)
Loss for the year {83.10) - - (83.10)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - - 6.15 6.15
Total comprehensive income for the year (83.10) - 6.15 (76.95)
Share-based payment Expense - 133,59 - 133.59
Premium on Issue of shares - - - 2,005.85
Capitalisation on account of issue of bonus shares - - - (10.00)
Balance at 31 March 2023 (421.01) 133.59 18.54 1,726.96
summary of significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes forming integral part of the these financial 531

statements
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For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
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Digital Age Retall Private Limited
Notes forming part of these financial statements
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 Reporting entity

Digital Age Retail Private Limited "the Company”) was incorporated on 15 April 2011, The Cumpany is engaged in the business of buying, selling,
and dealing in baby and kids products.

2 Basls of preparation for financial statements
A. Statement of compliznce

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind A5) as pe- the Companies {Indian Accuunting
Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements weré authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on September 04, 2023
Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note 3.

8. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR], which ic also the Company's functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated,

C. Basls of measurement

The firancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following iterms.

Items | ement basis

Certain financial assets and labilities Fair value

D. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that alfect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls Revisiuns to ACCoUNting estimales are recognised prospectively

A 2 " i i

and uncer

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in @ material adjustment are included in the
foliowing notes: )

- Nate 33 Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Notz 10 & 15 Goods and Service Tax Receivable: expected utilisation is based on management approved budgets

L. Measurement of fair vaiues

A number of the Company's accaunting pollcies and disclosures reouire the measurement ef fair velues, fer toth financial and nor-tinuncia’ assets
and lizpifities.

The Compary has an establish2d control framework with respect o the measuremen) of fair values wneremn thne overa!l responsitility for
overseeing all significant fair value rieasurements, including Level 3 fair values 15 supervised Ly the crief financial officer.

This Includes reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation agjustments. If third party informatien is used to m2asure fa)l values, then the
evidence gbtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuatiors meet the requirements of Ind AS, Including the level in
the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified |s assessed.

Fair values are categorised into gifferent ievels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows:

- Leve! 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Levei 2: inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable fur the asset or liahility, wiher directly {i.c. as pricas) or indirectly
{i.e. derived from prices),

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or Lakility that are not based on ohservablie market data [unobservabie inpucs).

‘Whan measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possitle. If the inputs used to measJre
the fair value of an asset or a liability fall inte different levels of the talr value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement Is categorised i its
ertirery in the sama level ot the foir vaiue higrarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire ineasurement

The Compan, recognises tran-fers Latv.zen ievels of the fair value hierasth, ot the zrd of the reparting neriad curing whech the Lhange haz
oteurred.

Further information abuut the assurations made In measuring fair values s included in the foliowing notes:
- Note 38 - Fair value measurements
- Note 33 - Financial Instrum 2nts



Digital Age Retall Private Limited
Notes forming part of these financial statements
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation (continued)

F. Current f non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified inta current and non-current :-

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(a} it is expectad to be realised in, or is intended for sale or o ption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(b} itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

() it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

{d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 3 |iability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date.

Current assets include the current portion of nen-current financial assets. All ather assets are classified as non-current

Liabilities

A liability 1s classified as current whan it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a} it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

[¢) it is due to be settled within 12 months aiter the reporting date; or

{d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a
|lability that could, at the option of tne counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its cassification
Current liabilities include current purtion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the tme between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The operating cycle of
the Company is lessthan 12 months,

3 Significant accounting polices
a, Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trads receivables and debt instruments (such as security deposits) Issued are initially recognized when they are ariginated. All other financia
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the centractual provisians of the instrument

A financial asset or financial lapility is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL), transaction
:osLL that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

i Classification and subsegquent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a finar.cial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost;
- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - debt Investment;
- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - eguity investment; or
- Fair Value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subseguent to their initial recognition, except if and in the perlod the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amaortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not desiznated ¢s at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within 2 business model whose objective is ta hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding



Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Notes forming part of these financial statements
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

3 Significant acc g polices (c d)

a. Financlal Instruments (Continued)

A debt investment is measured at FVOC! if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective (s achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and

- the contractua! terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognlition of an equity Investment that Is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
Investment's tair value in OC! (deslgnated as FVOC! - equity investment). This eiection is made on an investment- by- investmert basis

Transfers of financial assets to third partles in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose,
i with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basls are measured at FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL On initial recognition, the
Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the reguirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FILI'DC: as at

FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise |
Fi ial assets: Subseq ement and gains and losses
Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and lusses, at FVTPL including any interest or

dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss

Debt investments at fVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income under the effective interes! method,
foreign exchange galns and losses and impalrment are recognised in profit or loss, Other net gains and|losses are
recognised In OCL On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless
the dvidend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and |osses are
recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to profit or loss

rinancial assets at amaortised Thesg assets are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, The amortised
cost cost 15 reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairmert are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability Is classifien as at FVTPL if [t is classified as held- for-
trading, or il Is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Finarcial liabilities at FVTPL are measurea at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised In profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured a1 amartised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense and fereign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain jor lpss on
aerecognition is also recognised in profit or loss

§il. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financ:al asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or A transfers|tne rights
to receive the contractual zash flows In a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownershig of the financial asset are

transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retains substantially a.i of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain
control of tne financial asset,

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retzing eitner all or substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

The Company cerecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelles, or expire

The C y also derecogni a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the madified terms {5 recognised at fair value The difference between the carmving amaount
of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial llability with modified teims is recognised in profit or loss.



Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Notes forming part of these financial statements
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

3 Significant ing polices | i

a. Financial instruments (Continued)

iv. Dffsetting

Financial assets and financial liatilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and It intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the llability

simultaneously,

b. Property, plant and equipment

LR
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised barrowing costs, less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, If any.

and ement

Cost of an item of property, plant and eguipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for Its intended use ang
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as sepirate iteins (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.
il. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company.

ill. Depreciation

Depreciation Is calculated on costs of items of property, plant and eg. 1t less their residual values over their estimated useful |ves
using the written down value methad, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and (oss

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative years are In line with those specifiea in
Schedule || to the Companies Act, 2013 and are as follows:

Asset Useful life (years)
Computers 3
Network and Servers (disclosed within Computers) 6
Office equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 10
Leasehold improvements 5 [over the period of the (ease)

Deprecistion method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted fappropgriate
Depreciation on additions [disposals) is provided on a pre-rata basis i.e. from (upta) the date on which assat is ready for use (disposed of),
c. Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets Including those acquired by the Company in a business combination are intially measured at cost. Such intangible assets
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amertisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

%_



Digital Age Retall Private Limited
Notes forming part of these financial statements
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

3 Significant ace g palices (c i d)

d. Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on weighted average method, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, and other costs incurred |n bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses
and discounts.

The corparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
e. Impairment

I. Impairment of financial Instruments

The Company recognises loss allo es for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost. The Company measures loss
allowances at an amount equal 1o lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade recelvables are always measured at an amount enual to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses
aie the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument

In all cases, the i n period considered when g expected credit losses is the maximurm contractual period over which the Company
Is exposed to credit risk.

il. imp of non-fi ial assets

The C y's non-financial assets, other than inventeries and deferred tax assels, are reviewed at each reporting date 1o determine whether

there is dny Indication of ympairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recaverable amaunt is estimated.

kor impajrment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating unis (CGUs). Each CGL
represerys the smaliest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows cf other assets or CGUs

The recoverable amount of a C3U (or an individual asset] is the higher of its vaiue in use and its fair value less casts to sell. Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows. discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current mackat assessments of the
time value of monev and the risks spacific to the CGU (or the asset]

Ar impanment loss s recogrised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoveranle amount. Impairment lusses are
rezognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goadwill allocated ta the CEU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the ather assets of the CGU {or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

1

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill s not subsequently reversed. In respect of ather assets for which impairment lass has been recognised
in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, Such a reversal is made anly 1o
the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of amortisation or
amarti it no impai inss had been recognised.

f. Employee benefits
I, Short-term employee benefits
Short-tenn employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the elated service is provided A lablity i

recognised for the amcunt expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a presant legal o7 construrtive ubligatio
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligaticn can be estimated reliably

N

o



Digital Age Retail Private Limited

Notes forming part of these financial statements
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

3 Significant acc g polices (continued)

. Empl = R ™

ii. Defined cantribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government
administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans ara recognised as an employee benefit expense
in profit or loss in the year during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid cantributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is aval'able
ili. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a pest-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribut.ion plan The Company's net obligation in respect of
defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that emplayees have sarned in the current
and prior years, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit methiod. When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset s limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the nlan ('the asset ceiling'|. In orger to calculate the present
value of economic benefits, considerstian is given to any minimum funding requirements

Aafi

R ements of the net d benefit liability, which comprise actuareal gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset celling (if any, excluding imerest), are recognised in OCI. The Campany determines the net interest expense (incomel on the
nat defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined penefit obligation at the beginning of
the annual period ta the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit lability [asset! during
the period as a rezult of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related o defined benefit plans are
recognised in profit er loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan Is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates 1o past service ('past service cost’
or 'past service gain'} or the gain or lass on curtailment Is recognised immediately In profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and iosces on
the settiement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Iv. Other long term employee benefit

The Company's liability in respect of ather lang-tarm employee benefits (compensated absences is the amount of future benefil that emplovees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value
of any related assets is deducted. The obligations measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit
Cradit method, Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in profit or [oss in the period in which they arise,

£. Provisions |other than for employee benefits), Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

i. Provisions (otner than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised If, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated relianly,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required te settie the obligation Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date)
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

il. Contingent liahilities and contingent assets
A contingent |igbility exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of restrur:zs, or a present obligation whose amount can rot be estimated reliably. Contingent lizbilities do not warrant provisions, but are
cisclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

A contingent asset 15 a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the uccurrerde or non
oceurrence of one or more uncertain future ovents not whaelly within the eontral of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized in the firancial
statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it s virtually certain that an inflow of aconamic benefit will arli[ tha asset
and related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of econemik benefits
is probable.




Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Notes forming part of these financial statements
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

3 Significant accounting polices (continued)

h. Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods/ services to customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expect to be entitled for those goods/ services.

To recognize the Company applies the following five-step approach:

- identify the contract with a customer;

- Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

- Uetermine the transaction price;

- Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

- Recognise revenues when & performance obligation is satisfied.

I. Revenue from sale of products

Revenue is measured at the fair vaiue of the consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and rebates,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or Juties collected on behalf of the government

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the company in Its own account. Rather, it |5 tax collected on value added 1o the commadity
by the seller on behalf of the gavernment, Accordingly, it (s excluded from revenue

The Company generally works on cash and carry model.

ii. Loyalty points programmas

For customer loyalty programmes, the fair value of the consideration received ur raceivable in respect of the initial sale is allocated between
the loyalty points and the other components of the sale. The amount allocated to loyalty points is deferred and is recognisew as revenue
when tha loyaity points are red d and the C 1y has fulfilled its ohligations 1o suoply the discounted products under the terms of the
programme orjwhen it is no longer probable that the award credits wili be redeemed,

T, Internet display charges

Income from internet display charges is recognised on an accrual bazis to the extent that it is probable that the econamic berefits will flaw
to the Company and the revenue from such services can be reliably measured. The perfarmance obligation is satisfied over a time and
payment is generally due within 30 to 60 days from satisfaction of perfarmance obligation

Iv. Club membership fees
Revenues from club memberships are recognised over the membership period on & systematic basis,

v. Income from sampling activity

income fram sampling activity is recognised on an accrual basis to the extent that it is probable that tne economic benefits will flow 1o the
Company and the revenue from such services can be rellably measured. The payment is generally due within 30 to 60 days from satisfaction
of perfarmance obligation.

vi. Contract balances
The Policy for Contract balances |.e. contract assets, trade receivables and contract liabiities is ar follows: ;

a. Contract assets and trade receivables

The Company classifies lfs right to consideration in exchange for aeliverables as eiiher a receivable ar as unbilled revenue A recevable
Isaright to consideration that is uncenditional upon passage of time. Revenues in excess of biliings is recorded as unbllled revence and
is rlassified as a ﬁﬂan:ia1 asset where the right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of tiine. Unbilled revenue which |s
conditional is classified as other current asset. Trade receivables and unbilled r s presented net of impairment, Refer to
accounting policies of financial assets in financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement,

b. Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to deliver services to a customer for which the Company has received cons!deration or part thereafl
{or an amourt of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company deliver services ta the
custemer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whicheveris earlier]. Cantract liabilites
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under tne contract.




Digital Age Retall Private Limited
Notes forming part of these financlal statements
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

3 Significant i lices (continued)

I. Other income

|. Recognition of interest Income or expense

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts thraugh the expected life of the
finar.cial Instrument to:
- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calzulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

. Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that [t relates to a business combination or to
an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recelvable on the taxabie income or loss for the year and any agjustment to the tax
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected Lo be
paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax |aws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities Tor financial reparting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax (0sses
and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

-temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Company is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not rexerse it, the foreseeable future;
and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be availale against which they can e
used. The existence of unused tax losses s strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of
recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only 1o the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary dfferences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available zgainst which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax
assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each repoiting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no
longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected tu apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settied, based
on the laws that have been eracted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities, '

Deferred tax assets and ||abilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax iabilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax-entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simuitansously




Digital Age Retall Private Limited
Notes forming part of these financial statements
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

3 Significant ing polices [conti i)

k. Foreign currency transactions

Menetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets ana liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on histerical cost .n a taregn
currency are transiated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange difference are recognised in profit and loss.

I. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Bilance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hard and short-term depasits with an aoriginal maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of chariges in value

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methad, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of & nun-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of Income or expenses associated with investinge or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

m. Leases

The Company evsaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of ino AS 116, Identification of & lease requires
significant judgment. The Company uses significant juggement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewais) anc the applicabie
discount rate

The Company determines the lease terr as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both pariods cavered by an aptien 1o extend the
l2ase if the Company I$ reasonably certain to exercise that option, and periods covered by an oplion to terminate the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not to exercise that option in assessing whether the Company is reasanably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or
not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company
to exercise the aption ¢ extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the (ease. The Company revises the lease term f there is a
change in the non-cancellable period of a iease.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lesse commencement date
The cost of the righ® of use asset measured at Inception shall comprise of tne amount of the initial measurement of lease labilily adjusted for any
Iease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any Initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restaring the underlying asset or site an which it is
located. The right-of use assets subsequently measured at cost |ess any accumulated amortisation, accumulated impairment josses, if any and
adjusted for any re-measuremert of the lease liability. The right of use asset is depreciated in the straight line metiiog from the commencement
date over the skorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset, Right-of use assets are testea for impairinent where there any indication that
their carrying allvmums may not be recoverakle. lmpairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Companv measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not aaid at the commencement date of the lease The
lesse payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can te readily determined, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characterstics, the Company, on & lease by Jease
basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the Incremental horrawing rate for the portiolio as a whole. The
lease payvments shall include fixed payments. variable lease paymeants, residual valuw guaranteos, sxercise price of 3 purchase option whara the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, If the lease term refiects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest an
the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made arg re-measuring the carrying amount to refiect any
reassessment of lease modifications or to reflect revised In-substance fixed lease payments. Where the cariying amount of the right-of-use asset Is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease Iiability, the Company recognises any reniaineng amount of the re-
measurement in statement of profit and loss.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets
The Company applies the shori-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term |eases {i.e., *hose leascs tnat havo a iease term of 12 monthe or
less from the commencement date and de not contain a purchase option). It alse applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemptpon 1o
leases that are considered to be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and [eases of low-value assets are recognised as expensy on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.




Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Notes forming part of these financial statements
[All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

3 significant acc g polices (continued)

n. Earning per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity and compulserily convertible preference shares
outstanding during the year,

Far the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity sharehalders of the Company
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

o. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported In a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The board of
directors of the Company are dentified as Chief operating decision maker. Refer note 36 for segment information

p. Employee share based payment

Employees (Including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the farm of share-based pay ts, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions),

The cost of equity-settied transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation mogel

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding Increase in other eguity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumuiative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at eacn reporting date
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ulti Iy vest, The 1t of profit and loss expense or credit for @ period represents tne movement in cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and ena of that period and i5 recognised in emplayee benefits expense

Service and non-market perfarmance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, out the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company's best estimate of the numoer af equity instruments that will ultimately
vest,

No exp is recog: d for Is that do not ultimately vest because nor-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms had not been mod.fied,
if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by
the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Actounting
Standards) Rules 35 issuzd from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 by
Issuing the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules. 2023, applicatie frum April 1, 2023, as beluw:

ind AS 1~ Pr ion of Fi ial Stat

The finents require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than therr sigrficant accounting policies. Accounting
pelicy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of
general purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant irmpact In Its standalone financial
statements.

ind AS 12 - income Taxes

The amendments cfarif\«" how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning cohgations. The
amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 {recognition exemption) so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temparary o.ferences. The Company |5 evaluating the
im.pact, if any, in its 5t : financial

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policles, Changes in Acc ing Estl and Errors

The amendments will help entities te distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates, The definition of a change in accounting

has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting palicies require items in
financlal statements to be mearured in a way that involves measurement unceitainty. The Company does not expect this amendirent to have any
significant impact in its standal financial st s,

ind As 109 - Financial instruments

The Ministry of Carporate Affaigs ("MCA") vide notification dated 23 Marcn 2022, has issued an amendment te ind AS 109 which clarifies the fees
an entity should include when it applies the “10%’ test in assessing whether ta derecognise a financial Ezbility. An entity includes only fess paid o
Ieceived between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, inciuding fees paid or received by either the entity er the lender on tne ather s behalf
The Company 15 evaluating the fequirement of the said amendment and its impact an these standalone financial statemants
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Digital Age Retail Private Limited

Notes forming part of these financial statements (continued)
(all amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

&  Right-of-use assets

The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended March 31, 2023 and for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as

follows:
Particulars Buildings Tatal

|
Balance as cn April 1, 2021 459.53 45959
Additions during the year 72.06 72,08
Amortisation for the year (72.61) (72.61)
Balance as on March 31, 2022 459.04 459.04
Balance as on April 1, 2022 459.04 459.04
Adaditions during the year 1,992.26 1,992.26
Deletions during the year
Amortisation for the year {185.35) {185.35)
Balance as on March 31, 2023 l 2,265.95 2,265.95

The aggregate amortisation expense on ROU assets is included under amortisation and amartisation expense in the Statement of

Profit and Loss. ~

The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 is as follows:

Particulars As At March 31, As At March 31,
c 2023 2022
Current lease |iahilities 185.45 45.85
Non-cuirent lease liabilities 2,155.93 437.66
Total lease liahilities 2,341.38 487.51
The movement in lezse liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Particulars As At March 31, As At March 31,
2023 2022
Opening oa.ance 487.51 456.96
Additions ouri.ig the year 1,808.75 59.08
Interest cost accrued during the year 133.45 4753
Rent concessions during the year % (5.28)
Payments during the year {173.34) (80.78)
Closing Balance 2,341.38 487.51
A ts recognised in the St of profit and loss
Parditiary As At March 31, As At March 31,
2023 2022
Amartisation expense on right-of-use assets (refer note 27) 185.45 TZ61
|Intarest expense on lease liabilities {refer note 26) 133.45 47.53
Expenses related to short-term leases, vartable lease pavment or low 477.06 3317
value leases fincluded in other expenses) o L
Rent concessions during the year [S.28)

Amounts recognised in the § of cash flow

Particulars

As At March 31,
2023

As At March 31,
2022

Cash outflow for leases

178.33)

(80.78)

|
4

Notes:

Whan measuring lease liabilities for operating leases, the Company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate
at the date of inception of the leases. The weighted average pre tax rate applied is 10% p.a. for all the years.

For maturity analysis of lease liabilitles, refer note 39(iil)
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Notes forming part of these standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

7 Other Non-current financial assets

Particulars As at March | As at March
31,2023 31,2022
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 112.64 56.14
Interest accrued on fixed dzposits 474
Bank deposits (maturity more than 12 months) 102.38 181
Total 219.75 58.05 |
B Deferred tax assets (net)
Tke break-up of deferred tax liability and deferred tax assets is as under:
Pt ulins As at March | As at March
31,2023 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles 13.60
Employees’ benefits 565
On Right of Use Assets and Lease Liabilites 43.11
Total 62.37
9  Income tax assets (net)
Baitleiilame As at March | As at March
31, 2025 31, 2022
Income tax assets (net)” 2559 21.10
Total 25.99 21.10
*Net of provision for tax as at March 31, 2023: Rs. 17.47 millions (March 31, 2022: Rs. NIL.)
10 Other non current assets
Barioiiars | As at March | As at March_E
31, 2023 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 138.97 14.81 |
Balance with Government authorities
GST receivable 1,670.76 1,097.20
Total 1,809.73 1,112.01
11 Inventories
Partieniars As at March | As at March
31,2023 31, 2022
Traded goods * 4,488 33 32747
|
| Total 4,488.33 127.47 |

* The write down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to Rs. 16.00 millions (31 March 2022 : NIL). Above Inventeries inc uaes

Goods-in-Transit Amounting to Rs. 407.47 millions (March 31, 2022: Rs. 174.78 miillons).

%



Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Notes forming part of these standalone financial statements (continued)
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12

Trade receivables

Particulars

As at March
31, 2023

As at March
31, 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Considered good — Secured
Considered good — Unsecured
Considered good — receivable from related parties (Refer note 34)
Trade receivables which have significant increase in cradit risk
Trade recelvables — credit impaired

144.89
793

12827

Total

152.82

128.27

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

Less than 6
months

Unbilled

Not Due
Revenue

Particulars

6 months - 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

Mare than 3
years |

Undisputed trade receivables —
considered good 28.19 119.02
Undisputed trade receivables — which
have significant increase in credit risk - -
Undisputed trade receivables — credit
impaired

Disputed trade receivables—
considered good - -
Disputed trade receivables — which
nave significant increase in credit risk - - -
Disputed trade receivables — credit

0.63

1,53

0.01

3.44

impaired - - -

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022

Unbilled
Revenue

Less than 6

Not Due
months

Particulars

6 months =1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 |
years

Undispuied trade receivables —

considered good 10.14 46.08 27.92
Undisputed trade receivables — which
have significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables — credit
impaired - e *
Disputed trade receivables—

considered good s g

Disputed trade receivables - which
have significant increase in cradit risk
Disputed trade receivables -- credit

impaired -

1.04

41.72

0.87

0.50
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Notes forming part of these standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

13 (a)

13 (b)

14

15

Cash and cash equivalents
Biriioulars As at March | As at March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Cash in hand 021 0.18
Balances with banks
In current accounts 208.27 265.85
In deposit accounts having original maturity less than 3 months 472.90
Total 681.38 266.03
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents
=M As at March | As at March
Particulars
31, 2023 31, 2022
Deposits with remaining maturity of less than twelve months 201.89 2.57
Total 201.89 2.57
Other current financial assets
: As at March | As at March
Particulars
31, 2023 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Interest accrued on fixed ueposits 7.19 0.73
Other receivables 3576 6.00
Total 42.95 6.73
Other current assets
particalars As at March | As at March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to employees 4,59 171
Prepaid expenses 3767 16.24
Balance with Government authorities
GST receivable 8595 5741
Sales tax authorities 0.54 0.82
Advance to suppliers 13366 1.11
Receivables from vendors 356.57 194 57
Total £18.98 271.86 |




Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Notes forming part of these fir.ancial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Rupees millions, uniess otherwise stated)

1C Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
Nos Amount Nas Amount
Authorised
10,50,000 Equity shargs ot Rs. 10 each 10,50,000 10.50 10,000 0.10
Issued, subscribed and paid up equity shares
10,50,0C0 Equity sharec of Rs. 10 each 10,50,000 10.54 10,000 D.10
10,50,000 11.50 10,000 0.10
Reconclliation of shares ding at the beginning and at the end of the reparting year
ﬁ As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
Nos Amount Neos Amount
" |A. Equity Shares
At the commencement of the year 10,000 0.10 10,000.00 0.10
Issued during the year 40,000 0.40 -
Bonus shares issued during the year 10,00,000 10.00 -
At the end of the year 10,50,000 10,50 19,000 0.10 |
Total issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 10,50,000 10.50 10,000 010

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of eguity share Is entitled to one vate per share 1n case of liguidatian

of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all prefarential amaunts, in oroportian ta their
share holding.

Particulars of shares held by holding company

Asat March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022 |
Particulars % of total | %oftotal |
Nos Nos
shares in class shares in class
Brainbees Solutions Private Limited 10,49,979 100.00% - 0%

Particulars of snarehuiders halding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
Nos % of 'fntal Nis % of total
shares in class shares in class

Equity shares
Suman Basu - 0% 5,000 0%
Vandit Goyal . B 5,000 S0
Brainbees Solutions Private Limited 10,49.579 100.00% 0%

Aggregate number of saares issued for a consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date
- During the year ended 31 March 2023, 10,00,000 equity shares.of Rs. 10 gach fully paid up were allotted as bonus shares

Pzrticulars of Shareholding of promoters

The Corapany is a professionally managed Company and does not have an identifiable premater in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly disclosdies relaled
to promoter shareholding is not given.
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Notes forming part of these financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

17 Other equity

Retained earnings

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Securities Premium 1,995.85
Equity contribution from Holding Company 133.59 E
Retained earnings (402.48) (325.53)
Closing balance 1,726.96 (325.53)

(i) Securities premium

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Opening balance

2,005.85

Premium on issue of Equity Shares
Capitalisation on account of issue of bonus shares (10.00)
Closing balance 1,995.85

(ii) Equity contribution from Holding Company

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Opening balance

Equity settlement of stock options issued to employees 133.59 .

| Closing balance 133.59 -
(iv) Retained earnings

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Opening balance (325.53) (279.99)
Net loss for the year (83.10) (54.07)
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 6.15 8.53
|Closing balance (402.48) (325.53)

Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits/losses that the Company has earned till date.

g
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Notes forming part of these financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

18 {a) Non-current provisions

Particulars As at March 31,|As at March 31,
2023 2022
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 6.61 4,83
Provision far gratuity (Refer note 33) 11.55 867
Total 18.16 13.50
18 (b) Current provisions
Particulars As at March 31,(As at March 31,
2023 2022
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 2.56 177
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 33) 1.78 148
Total 4.34 3.25
19  Trade payables
Particulars As at March 31,| As at March 31,
2023 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 32) 22.24 1.85
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 6,195.93 1,860,33
Tat_zl 6,218.17 1!562.13
Trade payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023
Particulars Unbilled dues Not due Less than 1 1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs, More than3
year years
MSME -1 - 2224 - . -
Others 700.61 4,131.77, 1,328.83 2673 4.55 343
Disputed dues- MSME - . - - -
Disputed dues- Others E | - -
Trade payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022
Particulars Unbilled dues Not due Lesathan 1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs. Maore than 3
year years
MSME - - 185 - -
Dthers 476.28 971,54 388,62 5.58 323 5.09
Disputed dues- MSME - R 4 - =
Disputed dues- Others - : = 3
20 Other current financial liabilities
PAFOLUATE As at March 31,/As at March 31,
2023 2022
Accrued employee liabilities 2.45 328
Payables for property, plant and equipment 813 1,57
Other payable 2.14 175
Total 12.72 6.60
21 Other current liabilities
Particulars As at March 31,|As at March 31,
2023 2022
TOS payable 1.25 4,61
PF, PT Payable 599 .07
Advance from customers 675.74 545.92
Total 682.98 653,60
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Notes forming part of these financial statements (continued)
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22 Revenue from operations

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Sale of products

Sale of baby and Kids Products 29,775.95 23,501.90
Total [A) 29,775.95 23,901.90
Other operating revenue

Inceme from sampling activity 174.46 144 31

Internet display charges 33.30 7.42

Club membership revenue 111.10 46.10
Total (B) 323.86 197.83
Revenue from operations (A+B) 30,099.81 24,099.72

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contract price 3039342 431242
Loyalty points (6.40) [B.14)
Discounts, Rebates, etc. (287.21) |204.55)
Revenue from operations for the year ended 30,099.81 24,099.73
Refer accounting policy 3(h) for satisfaction of performance obligation and when the revenue is recognised.
Contract balances
The foliowing table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from customers
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contract assets
Trade recelvables 152.82 12627
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers 675.75 54597
Movement in contract liabilities during the year:
pirticulars For the year ended For the year ended 1
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 1
Balance as at beginning of the year 645 92 496 &7 '
» ; " A5, 67
fievanue recognised that was included in the contract liability ba'ance at the beginning of the year (642:92) H3e67)
Advance receved during the year 675.75 645.92
Balance as at end of the year 675.75 645.92

Refer note 36 for segmént reporting.

The Campany does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered for sale of goods are for a shorter duration. There are no contracts
for sale of services wherein, performance obligation is unsatisfied to which transaction price has been allocated.

23 Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended |

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest income : [
On fixed deposits witn banks 26.05 22.60 |
1
On others 6.01 275 |
Liabilities written back 9.22 1813
Miscelianeous income 18.75 5159
Total 120.03 95.07
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Notes forming part of these financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

24 Changes in inventories of Stock-in-Trade

Pasticalars Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening stock of stack-in-trade 327.47 262 61
Clesing stock of stock-in-trade (4,488.33) (327.47)
Tatal 14,160.86) (64.86),
25 (a) Employee benefits expense
Farkiculai For the‘\:zar ended For the year ended
Maren 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances 387.34 258.73
Contributions to provident and other funds 29,56 1852
Staff welfare expenses 7.33 11.75 |
Total 424.23 289.00
25 (b} Employee share based payment expence
i For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Employee share based payment expense 133.59
Total 133.59
26 Finance costs
Pastidalais For the year ended For the year enden

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Intarest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 5

133.45

]

4753 |

Total

133.45 | 47.53 |

27 Depre:izstion and amortisation expense

Particulars

|

For the yez1 ended
Marcii 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Depreciatien on propeity, plant and equipment 4579 3549
Amortisation of right of use assets 185.35 72.61
Amortisation of intangible assets u43
Total 231.57

108.10
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28 Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Subcontractor expenses 8.07 39.52
Shipping and packing expenses (net of recoveries) 2,985.01 2,782.59
Material handling expenses 146.15 118.29
Advertisement expenses 29.24 30.13
Sales promotion expenses 10.46 10.51
Power and fuel 3264 14.99
Warehousing expense 252.13

Rent 477.06 12317
Repairs and maintenance - others 14.41 548
Insurance 4.07 1.82
Rates and taxes 10.10 6.41
Legal and professional expenses 36.35 11.07
Payment to auditors (refer note (a) below) 2.50 2n
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note (b) below) . 0.18
Telephone and internet charges 22.66 20.01
Printing and stationary expenses 8.76 5.75
Payment gateway charges 122.37 140.49
Travelling and conveyance 803 13.35
Miscellaneous expenses 17.70 19.10
Total 4,187.71 3,345.57

(a) Payments to auditors
For the year ended For the year ended
sl March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
As auditor

Statutory audit 1.10 0.80
Tax audit 0.10 0.10
Other audit services 1.30 1.80
Reimbursement of expenses 0.01
Total 2.50 2.71

{b) Corporate social responsibility expenditure:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year
(i) Amount of expenditure incurred on
(a) Construction / acquisition of any asset
(b) On purposes other then (a) above
(iii} Shortfall at the end of the year
(iv) Total of previous years shortfall
(v) Reason for shortfall
(vi) Nature of CSR activities
(vii) Details of related party transactions, &.g., contribution to a trust contrelled by the company in
relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard

(viil} Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual
obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately

NA

NA

NA
Educational projects

NA

NA

For the year ended

March 31, 2022
016

NIL

NIL

NA
Educational projects

NA

NA
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29 Income tax
A Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Amount recognised during the year

Current tax (5.32) -

Income tax relating to earlier years (12.15) -
Deferred tax income/ (expense) recognised in profit and loss 64.45 2,87
Total 46.98 2.87

B Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Far the year ended
March 31, 2022

Profit before tax (130.14) (56.93)
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate @25.17% (32.75) (14.33)
Deferred tax recognised on prior year temporary differences (26.38)

Effect of prior year re-assessment 12,15 =
Deferred tax asset not recognised on previous losses and unabsorbed amortisation - 9.55
Others 191
Total (46.98) (2.87)

30 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the (Loss) / Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the (Loss) / Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on canversion of all the dilutive potential equity

shareas into equity shares.

The following reflects the Loss Profit and equity share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Far the year ended
March 31, 2022

Loss attributable to equity shareholders (A)

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of Basic EPS (8)
Basic EPS (A/B)

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of Diluted EPS (C )
Diluted EPS (A/C)

({B3.18)
10,46,603

(79.45)
10,46,603

(79.45)

{s4.07)

10,10,000
(53.53)

10,10,000
(53.53)
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31

A

32

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2023 2022
GST matters (See Note (a) below) 125
To_ml 1.25
Note

During the Financial year 2022-23, the case has been dismissed by the Appellate Authority arder dated November 26, 2022, where Company has

paid the demand of Rs. 0.86 million as per the order. Hence, there is no outstanding demand as on March 31, 2023.

Commitments

The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accourt and not provided for:

T O As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Capital commitments 82.95 10.54
Total 82,25 10.54
Dues to micro and small enterprises

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act’'). The

disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

to the small enterprise for the purpase of disallowance as a deductible expenditure
under the MSMED Act, 2006 *

Particulars
2023 2022

a) Principal amount payable ta suppliers as at year end 22.24 1.85
b) Interest due thereon as at yearend *
c) Interest amount for delayed payments to suppliers pursuant to provisions of
MSMED Act actually paid during the year, irrespective of the year to which interest =
relates
d) Amount of delayed payments actually made to suppliers during the year 56.19 521
e) Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 0.69 0.24
adding interest specified under the MSMED Act *
f) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year* 0.69 D.24
g) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are artually paid 0.99 0.31

" Above interest amounts have not been provided in the bocks

The Company has compiled this information based on intimations received from the suppliers aof their status as Micro or Small Enterarises and/

or its registration with the appropriate suthority under the Micru, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
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33 Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits

a)

b)

Y T As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Gratuity 15.33 10.15
Non-current 1155 8.67
Current 178 146

For dutails about the related employee benefit expenses, see Note 25,
Defined contributicn plans
The Company has a defined contribution plan in form of provident fund, ESIC and others. Contributions are made to the fund for
employees at the rates specified by regulaticns. For provident fund, contributions are made to registered provident fund administered
by the government. The obligation of the company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any
constructive pbligation. The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is Rs.29 56 millions (March 31, 2022
Rs. 18.52 millions).

1
Defined benefit plans
The Company operates the following post-employment defined benefit plans.
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Plan entitles an employee,

who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of
service or part thercaf in excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned.

These defined oeaefit plans expose the Company to actuarnal risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and market
{inve;tment} risk

l;unﬁllng

Comganv's defined benefit gian is unfunded,

Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liabllity

a) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars
2023 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 10.15 12.96
Benefits paid (0.68) 0.07)
Current service cost 6.25 7.35
Interest cost 0.7s 0.81
Transfer in 5.08 =
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other
comprehensive income |
-changes in demngradhlc assumptions
- changes in financial assumptions (0.721 (7.18)
- experience adjustments (7.50] (4.24)
Balance at the end of titéI year 13.33 10.15
b) A s to be recog d in Balance Sheet
Paiticulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Present value of obligation at the end of year 13.33 1015
Fair value of the plan assets at the end of year - -
Deficit (13.33) (10.15)
Current liability (1.78) (1.48)
Nan-current liakility (11.55) (8.67)
Amount not recognised due to asset ceiling = =
Net liability recognised in Bal Sheet (13.33 [10.15)
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33 Assets and liabilities relating tu employee benefits (continued)

<l

c) Expenses to be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2008 55
Service cosl 6.25 7.85
Net interest expense 075 0.81
Transfer in 5.08
Expense to be recognised In Statement of Profit and 12.08 8.66

Loss

d) Actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars
2023 2022
Remeasurement for the year - obligation Gain (8.22) (11.40)
Remeasurement for the year - plan asset (Gain) / Loss - -
Total Remeasurements Credit for the year recognised 822 11.40
in 0CI
Defined benefit obiigation
i. Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reperting date:
particul As at March 31, As at March 31,
i 2023 2022
Plan A
Discount rate 7.30% 6.10%
15% for the 1st 15% for the 1st
Future salary growth year and 8% year and 8%
thereafter thereafter
Attrition rate 25.00% 25.00%

Mortality rates have been considered in accordance with the Indian Assured Lives Mortality {2012-14) ultimate [1ALM ult)

ii. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuanal assumptions,
would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

holding otner gssumpiions constant,

Partlcuiars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease |
Plan A
Discount rate (1% movement) 12.78 1393 9.73 10.61
Future salary growth [1% movement) 13.77 1292 10.48 9.84
Attrition rate (1% movement) 13.22 1345 10.06 [ 10.25

Although the aralysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations

‘approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

As at Maich 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2033 2022

less than 1 Year 178 1.48
between 1-5 years 9.79 758
over 5 years 28.48 15.15

Compensated Absences

|The weighted average duraiion of the defined benefit obligation ranged between 7.33 years (March 31, 2022: 7 1 years). The expected
|maturity analysis of gratuity Is as follows:

The Company has a defined benefit plan for compensated absences. The expense recognised during the year towards gefined benefit
|plan for compensated absences is Rs. 2.57 millions (March 31, 2022 Rs. (1.43) millions)
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34 Related party transactions

A) Name of the related parties and nature of relationship
(i) Holding Company
Brainbees Solutions Private Limited

(ii) Felllow Subsidiaries
1 Intellibees Solutions Private Limited

2 Firstcry Management DWC - LLC

2 Shenzhen Starbees Services Ltd

4 Joybees Private Limited

5 Swara Baby Products Private Limited
B Firmrocts Private Limited

7 Solis Hygiene Private Limited

B Globalbees Brands Private Limited

9 Firstcry Retail DWC - LLC

10 Firstcry Trading Company

11 Firstery General Trading LLC

12 Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
13 Maxinigue Solutions Frivate Limited
14 Better and Brighter Homecare Private Limited
15 Eyezen Technologies Private Limited
1 Cloud Lifestyle Private Limited

17 tHealthyHey Foods LLP

18 Butternut Ventures Private Limited
19 Dynamic IT Solution Private Limited
20 Kubermart Private Limited

21 Mush Textiles Private Limited

22 Globalbees Brands DWC LLC

23 HS Fitness Private Limited

24 DF Pharmacy Limited

25 Candes Techrology Private Limited
26 Solarista Renewables Private Limited
27 Encasa Homes Frivate Limited

28 Frootle India Private Limited

29 Prayosha Expo Private Limited

30 Wellspire India Private Limited

31 Plantex E-Commerce Private Limited
32 JW Brands Private Limited

33 Kitchenopedia Appliances Private Limited
34 Edubees Educational Trust

35 Brainkees ESOP Trust

36 Swara Hygiene Private Limited

(iil} ey Managerial Personnel

1 Mr. Peeyush Mujoo
2 Mr. Sagar Panaskar
3 Ms. Sakshi Karnani (till 14 April, 2022)

B) Othar Related Parties

i. Entities having significant influence
Mahindra Retail Limited (formerly Mahindra Retail Private Limited) which has amalgsmated with Mahindra &

Mahindra Limited pursuant to an order dated April 29, 2022 passed by Nationai Company Law Tribunal ['NCLT')

%.
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34 Related party t

ctions (continued)

| Transactions with related parties

For the perlod ended

Faor the period ended

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Brainbees Solutions Private Limited
A) Purchase of Traded Goods 7,919.48 -
B) Miscellaneous Expense 12.80 -
C) Rent Expense 325.20
D) Capital Infusion 2,006.25
E) Share based payments (included in Equity) 13359
F) Sale of Traded Goods 3,091.31
G) Warehousing expense 252.13 #
Firmroots Private Limited
A) Purchase of Traded Goods 0.50 -
B) Cust charge back 3.30 -
Shenzhen Starbees Services Ltd
A) Professional fees pald 22.27
Globalbees Brands Private Limited
A} Miscellaneous income 10.66
Merhaki Food and Nutrition Private Limited
A} Purchase of Traded Goods 7.07 -
B) Miscellaneous income 0.05 »
Better And Brighter Homecare Private Limited
A) Purchase of Traded Goods 0.00 .
B8] Miscellanecus income 0.00
Cloud Lifestyle Private Limited
A) Miscellaneous income 0.00 -
Dynamic IT Solution Private Limited
A} Purchase of Traded Goods 0.18
B) Miscellaneous income 0.01
Kubermart Industries Private Limited
A) Purchase of Traded Goods 7.35
B) Miscellaneous income 0.16 z
DF Pharmacy Limited
A) Purchase of Traded Goods 0.33
B) Miscellaneous incame 0.01
Solarista Renewables Private Limited
A) Purchase of Traded Goods 1.42
Prayosha Expo Private Limited
A) Purchase of Traded Goods 1.14
B) Miscellaneous income om
Key Manutrlaj Personnel®
Mr Peeyush Mujoo ** 84.43 59.50
Mr. Sagar Panaskar ** 18.74 15.49
Mrs. Neha Surana # 053
Ms, Sakshi Karnani # 0.03 032

* Remuneration to key management personnel excludes prowvistans for gratuity and compensated absences benefits which have beer

actuarially determined for the company as a whole and hence amounts pertaining to the KMPs ca:inct be determinea

** Includes Share based payments accrual

# Neha Surana, Company Secretary left the organisation on 30 October, 2021 and Sakshi Karnani ieined the Company as Company

Secretary on 1 November, 2021 and left the organisation on 14 April, 2022,

Note : Rs. 0.00 represents amounts |ess than Rs, 5,000/-
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34 Related party tr .

tinued)

Il Qutstandirg balances with related parties

Particulars

For the period eaded
March 31, 2023

For the period ended
March 31, 2022

Brainbees Solutions Private Limited
Payable for purchase of goods
Szcurity deposits

Shenrhen Starbees Services Ltd
Payable for professional services

Firmroots Private Limited
Recelvable for cost charge back

Globalbees Brands Private Limited
Receivable towards sale of services

Merhaki Food and Nutrition Private Limited
[a\rable far purchase of goods

etter And Brighter Homezare Private Limited
Payable for purchase of goods

Cloud Lifestyle Private Limited
Payable for purchase of goods

namic It Solution Private Limited
ayable for purchase of goods

ubermart Industries Private Limited
ayable for purchase of goods

Pharmacy Limited
Payable for purchase of goods

Prayoshz Expo Private Limited
Payable for purchase of goods

Mahindra Retail Limited {forinerly Mahindra Retail Private Limited) which has
amzlgamated with Kahindra & Mahindra Limited pursuant to an order dated Apri!
29, 2022 passed by National Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT')

Receivable for sale of goods

3,731.76
2.71

6.47

3.30

1.18

{0.00)

(0.00)

(0.01)

0./8

(0.00)

0.29

3.45

Note : Rs. 0.00 represents amounts less than Rs. 5,000/-

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm's length basis.
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Notes forming part of these standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

35 Ratios as per Schedule 11l requirements

a) Current ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Current assets 6,386.35 1,002.93
Current liabilities 7,103.72 2,575.48
Ratio 0.90 0.39
% Change from previous year 130.86%

The change is mainly due to increase in inventory days . The company has a higher inventory as on 31 March,
2023 as compared to 31 March, 2022 which has led to an increase in trade payable and has impacted this

ratio.

b) Debt|equity ratio = Total Debt divided by Total equity

Paiticiilass As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Total debt 2,341.38 487.51
Total equity 1,737.40 (325.43)
Ratio 1.35 -1.50
% Change from previous year -189,96%

The change 1s mainly due to capital infusion.

c) Debt service coverage ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided by Total interest and principal

payments

Baiaies As at March 31, As at March 31,

2023 2022

Profit/{loss) after tax (83.16) (54.07)
Add : Non cash operating expenses and finance cost
- Depreciation and amortisation 231.57 108.10
- Finance cost 133.45 47.53
Earnings available for debt services 281.86 101.56
Interest cost on borrowings 133.45 47.53
Principal repayments and lease payments 44 .89 33.26
Total Interest and principal repayments 178.34 80.79
Ratio 1.58 1.26
% Change from previous year 25.72%

|The change is due to iticrease in debt (leases).

dllReturn on Equity Ratio / Return on Investment Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Equity

T As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
(Loss) / Profit after tax™® (83.16) (54.07)
Total Equity 1,737.40 (325.43)
Ratio -4.79% 16.61%
% Change from previous year -128.81%

This is on account of loss incurred during the financial year 2022-23 and capital infusion during the vear.




Digital Age Retail Private Limited

Notes forming part of these standalone financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

35 Ratios as per Schedule 11l requirements (continued)

e) Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of material consumed divided by closing inventory

Pastoulars As at March 31, As at March 31,

2023 2022
Purchase of traded goods 28,400.23 20,526.40
Changes in inventory (4,150.86) {64.86)
Cost of material consumed 25,239.37 20,461.54
Average inventory 2,407.90 295.04
Ratio 10.48 69.35
% Change from previous year -84.89%

The change is due to increased inventory levels.

f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by Average trade receivables

paticulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Credit Sales 30,099.81 24,099.73
Average Trade Receivables 140.54 217.79
Ratio 214.17 110.66
% Change from previcus year 93.54%
The change is due to improved collections.
g) Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by average trade payables
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars
2023 2022
Credit Purchases 28,603.33 20,526.40
Average Trade Payables 4,040.17 1,778.52
Ratio 7.08 11.54
% Change from previous year -38.66%

The ratio has reduced due to increase in trade payables as at March 31, 2023.

h) Net working capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Net Working capital where net working capital =

current assets - current liabilities

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2023 2022
Revenue from operations 30,099.81 24,099.73
Net working capital (717.37) {1,572.56)
Ratio (Times) -0.02 -0.07
% Change from previous year -63.48%

The change is mainly due to increase in inventory days . The company has a higher inventory as on 31 March,
2023 as comparad to 31 March, 2022 which has led to an increase in trade payahle and has impacted this

ratio.

&




Digital Age Retail Private Limited

Notes forming part of these standalone financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)
35 Ratios as per Schedule Il requirements (continued)

i) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales

- As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Profit/(Loss) after tax (83.16} (54.07)
Revenue from operations 30,099.81 24,099.73
Ratio 0.28% -0.22%
% Change from previous year 23.15%

This is on account of loss incurred during the financial year 2022-2023.

-
=

Return on Capital employed = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by Capital Employed

% Change from previous year

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Profit/(Loss) before tax (A) {130.14) (56 93)
Finance costs (B) 133.45 47.53
Finance income (C) 120.05 95.07
EBIT (D) = (A)+(B)-(C) (116.72) (104.48)
Total equity (E) 1,737.40 (325.43)
Borrowings (including lease liabilities) (F) 2,341.38 487.51
Intangible assets (G) 1.44 -
Capital Emploved {H)=(E)+(F})-(G) 4,077.35 162.08
Ratio (D)/(H) -2.86% -64.46%
-95.56%

This change is mainly due to increase in borrowings.

36 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The board of directors has been identified as the chief operating decision maker.
The Company has only one operating and reportable segment which is "Baby and Kids products”.

Major Customers:

The Company has no external customer which accounts for more than 10% of the Company's total revenue

for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

All the assets of the company are located within India.

e 7




Digital Age Retail Private Limited

Notes forming part of these standalone financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

37 Share based payments

See accounting policy in Note 2(o)

A, Description of share-based payment arrangements

The Campany has the following share-based payment arrangements:

On January 21, 2022 Brainbees Solutions Private Limited (Holding ccrrpany, estabiished share cption plans that entitle

the employees to purchase snares in the Brainbees Solutions Private Limited. Undar this plan, nolders of vested opticns
are entitied to purchase shares at INR 2 per share price, The options have a vesting condition of 3 to 4 years.

Number of
Grant

instruments
Grant 1 4,64,898
Total share options 4,64,893

B. Measurement of fair values
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements
The fair value of employee share options has been reasured using Black-Scholes option pricing model

The fair vaiue of the ootions and the inputs used in the rmeasurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settied
share based payment plans are as follows: 4

31 March 2022

Particulars Grant 1
Fair value at grant vate 441.07
Share price at grant date 442 81
Exercise price - 2
Expected valatility (weighted average volatility) 57.45%
Expected life (expected weighted average Life) 2.25
Expected dividends -
Risk-free|interest|rate (based on government bonds) f.20%
. Reconciliation|of outstanding share options
The number and \veighted-average exercise prices of share option under the snara option plans are as-follows
31-Mar-23

Particulars Grant 1
Outstanding at 1 April 2022
Granted during the period 4,566,148

Forfeited during theé period (1,250)
Cancelled during the period -
Exercised during the period <
Outstanding at 31 March 2023 4,64,898
Exercisable at 31 March 2023 -

Weight average exercise price for:

Particulars March 21, 2023
Opening Balance
Granted during the period 2.00

Forfeited during the period 2.00
Cancelled during the period -

Exercised during the period
Closing Balance 2.00
Options Exercisable




Digital Age Retall Private Limited

Notes forming part of these standalone financial statements (continued)

{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless atherwise stated)

38 Fairvalue measurements

A Accounting classifications and fair values

Fair value of cash and short-term depasits, trade and other short term recelvables, trade payables and other current financial (labi, ties approxrates their carrying amounts (argely due to

short term maturities of these instruments.

The folloving table shuws carrying amount and falr values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including thieir levels in the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2023

F 1]
Particulars Carrying amount Amortised Cost e
Level 1 Level 2 Levei 3

Financial assets at amortised cost
Security aeposits 112 64 112.64 |
Bank deposits 102.38 102.38 |
Trade recelvables 152.82 152.82 |
Cash and cash equivalents 681.38 581.38 |
Other banx balances 201.89 101.88
Other Current financial assets 42.95 42.95
interast accrued on fixed deposits 474 4.74
Total fi iul assets 1,298.80 1,258.80
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Lease Liabllity 2,341.33 2,341.38
Trade payables 6,218.16 6,218:16
Other current financial liabilities 12.78 12.78
Total financial liabilities 8,572.32 8,572.31
As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Carrying amount Amortised Cost Fair value ]

it Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 |

Financial assets at amortised cost
Security deposits 56.14 5614
Bank deposits 1.9 1.931 |
Trade recevables 12827 12827 |
Cash and c7sh equivalents 266.03 266.03 I
Othar bank balances 257 257 |
Other Current financial assets 673 673 |
Total financial assets 461.65 461.65 ]
Financial lizbilities at amortised cast
Lease Liability 487 51 487.51
Trade payables 1B62.18 1,862.18
Other current financial Nabilivies B.60 6.60
Tatal financial liabilities 2,356.29 2,356,29




Digital Age Retail Private Limited
Notes forming part of these standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts In Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

39 Financial | - Risk t

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
i) eredit risk;

il) lguidity risk; and

ilf) market risk.

i. Risk management framework

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk raanagement framework. The
senior management is for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The management reports regularly to the board of
directers on its activities.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, ta set appropriate risk limits and
controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes In market
conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintan a
disciplined and constructive control enviranment in which all employees understand their roles and abligations.

Ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers.

The Company'’s expasure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also ronsiders
the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and country in which
customers operate,

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limite and continuously monitering the credit wortkiness of customers to which
the Company grants credit terms in the hormal course of business, On account of adeption of Ing AS 109, the Company usecs expected credit loss
model to assess impairment loss or gain.The Company uses a matrix to compute the eapected credit ioss allowance for trade receivables. The
provision matrix takes in tu account available external and internal credit risk factors and Compaiw's historical experience for customars.

The Company has not made any provision on expected credit loss arising on trade recevables 2nd other financial assets, based on management
estimates.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivaients is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks ana financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies.

iil. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial ‘iabilitics that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company's appraach te managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities wher they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withmj incurring unarceptable lcsses or risking
dl‘i'gc 1o the Company's reputajicn. The management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liguidity position an ine basis of exparten cash
fiy

Exposure to liquidity risk

Tha following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. Tna amounts ara gross ana undiscounted, ana
include contractua! Intergst payments.
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Notes forming part of these standalone financial statements (continued)
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39

39

Financial instruments - Risk management (continued)

As at March 31, 2023
Contractual cash flows
Particulars Carrying amount
. Less than 1 year |[1-3 years More than 3 years
Trade payables 6,218.16 6,218.16
Lease liabilities 2,341.38 410.17 850.94 2,176.45
Other financial liabilities 12,78 12.78 - -

As at March 31, 2022

Contractual cash flows

Particulars Carrying amount

e . Less than 1 year |1-3 years More than 3 years
Trade payables 1,862.18 1,862.18 -
Lease liabilities 487.51 96.39 209.78 37744
Other financial liabilities 6,60 6.60 -

Financial i

ts - Risk m

t (Continued)

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Comgany's income
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage und contrel market risk exposures witkin
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

v. Currency risk

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is limited as majority of the transactions are n its functignal currency. As at the balance-sheet
date, the Company had following foreign currency exposures which have not been hedged by any derivative finan-ial instruments as they are not
material.

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Foreign currency |Rupees |Fnreig,n currency  |Rupees

Payable - USD |0.08) |6.80)

Total (6.80)

Sensitivity*

Impact on profit before tax and aquity
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2222

Particulars

USD sensitivity
USD/INR -Increase by 5%

USD/INR, -Decrease by 5%

(0.34) =
0.34 -

Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base se as to maintain investor, creaitor and other stakeholders’ confidence and to sustain
future development of tne business. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid ta
sharehodlers, return capital to sharehodlers, issue new share or sell assets to reduce debt

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'net debt' ‘equity’. For this purpose, net deot is defined as total
liabilities, comprising interest-bearing lcans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and other balances with 8anks. Equity comprises all
companents. The company has no debt as on March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

¥
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40 Capital management

The /'s policy s to 2 strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and other stakeholders' confidence and to sustain future development of
the t In order ta mal or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amocunt of pald to sharehodlers, return capital to
sharehodlers, issue new share or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'net debt’ 'equity’. For this purpose, net debt is defined as total liabilities,
comprising Interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equival and other bal with Banks. Equity comprises all compenents. The campany has
nodebt as on March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

41 Qther statutory information

a) Relationship with struck off companies

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Name of struck off company Nature of Trasactions during Balance Trasactions during Balance
transaction with the year outstanding as on the year outstanding as on
struck off 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
PHONOGRAPHIC PERFORMANCE LIMITED *  {Pavable - . 0.18 0.00

* Amout for FY 2021-22 Rs. 98/-

b) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property,

€) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which s yet to be registered with the ROC beyond the statutory period.

d) The Company has not traded or i d in Crypta y or virtual y during the current financial year.

] The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the yearin the
tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

f) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

£) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year,

) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity (les), including foreign entities (i di ) with the under
that the intermediary shall :

() Directly or indirectly lend er invest in other person (s} or entitics identified in any manner whatscever on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries)

iil Provide any guarantes, any securities or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

1) The Company has not received any fund from any person (s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities (F unding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise} that the company shall :

a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persan (s} or entities identified in any manner whatscever on bebalf of the Company {ultimate beneficiaries)
b) Provide any guarantee, any securities or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

/) There is no loans or advance in the nature of loans granted falling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted Lo settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

K The C

pany has not lued any of its property, plants and equipments including Right of Use asset during the year.
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